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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
ACCELYST SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 11t Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

FI E

The Company's financial performance during the year ended 31st March, 2019 is summarized below:

Amount in Rs'000
| Particular 2018-2019 2017-18
Revenue from Operations 128,976 167,281
Other Income 14,807 52,137
Finance Income 27,132 25,824
(Loss) for the year (792,945) (259,445)

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE QUTLOOK

Your Company manages and operates one of India’s leading recharge and bill payment mobile
application/website under the brand name “Freecharge”. Young and urban customers across the country
use Freecharge to make prepaid, postpaid, DTH, metro recharge and utility bill payments for numerous
service providers.

With the aim tc be best in class in User Interface and providing a convenient and seamless user experience
for its customers, your Company keeps revamping the mobile application in order to improve discovery and
overall customer experience.

Attractive rewards across various categories and promotional offers were formulated including expanding
the alliances, to continuously attract new customers on the platform. Your Company also launched digital
savings bank offering in collaboration with Axis Bank which offers a convenient way to open digital savings
bank account in Axis Bank. In the coming year the user experience in opening and operating this account will
be further improved as enhancements will be made to the flow to improve customer journey.

Your company launched a media campaign during the year focused on the digitally native, young and urban
consumer which lead to significant improvement in Brand awareness and received an overall positive
feedback from its consumers,

During the year under review, your Company filed an application before National Company Law Tribunal,
New Delhi for approval of Scheme of Amalgamation of Company with and into Freecharge Payment
Technologies Pvt. Ltd,, a fellow subsidiary. The said Scheme of Amalgamation was approved by the Board of
Directors of both Companies on March 27, 2018 and amendment to scheme was also approved on May 8,
2018. Since both the companies are engaged in similar line of business, the board of directors are of the
opinion that merger of both companies will result in organizational efficiencies, economies of scale and
optimum utilization of resources.

Registered Office: Unit No. 205-206, Plot No. 1, 2nd Floor, Vaibhav Chambers, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra East, Mumbai- 400051 CIN: U72900MH2008PTC185202 (Subsidiary of Axis Bank Limited)



Except as mentioned above, there is no change in the nature of business carried by the Company.
DIVIDEN
In view of the losses incurred during the year under review, your Directors do not recommend any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year under review, there was no change in the Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-
up equity share capital of the Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return, pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, for the financial year
ended 315t March, 2019, is furnished in Form MGT-9 and is annexed as “Annexure 1” to this Report.

ARTICULAR LOYEE

The Company beingan unlisted company, the provisions of Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended from
time to time are not applicable on the Company.

During the year under review, all contracts or arrangements with related parties entered into at arm’s
lengths basis and in the ordinary course of business. As required pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, particulars of all such contracts or
arrangements are enclosed in prescribed Form AOC-2 as Annexure-2 to this report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined under Chapter V of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.

AUDITORS

M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (ICAI Firm Registration Number 301003E) Statutory Auditors of the Company
hold office till the conclusion of 13t Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Auditors Report

The Auditor’s report to the shareholders on the standalone and consolidated financial statement for the year
ended March 31, 2019 does not contain any qualification, observation or adverse comment. The comments
made by Statutory Auditors in their report for the financial year ended 315t March 2019 are self-explanatory
and therefore, do not call for any further explanation or comments from the Board.



SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company appointed Mr. Sanjay Chugh,
Practicing Company Secretary to act as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2018-
19.The Secretarial Auditor has conducted the audit of the secretarial records of the Company for the financial
year under review and has also furnished the Secretarial Audit Report which is annexed as Annexure - 3 to
this report.

There are no qualification, reservation or adverse remark made by Secretarial Auditor in his Report.
OF DIRE Y MAN IAL PERSONN ND BOARD ME S

During the year under review, the appointment of Ms. Nithya Easwaran as Independent Director and
appointment of Mr. Mohit Jain and Mr. Jairam Sridharan as directors liable to retire by rotation were
approved by the members of the Company at 10t Annual General Meeting held on 215t September, 2018,

Pursuant to provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Mohit Jain retires by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. A resolution
seeking approval of the members for the re-appointment of Mr. Mohit Jain as director of the Company shall
be placed before the members of the Company at the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company.

During the year under review, Mr. Ajay Bhutani, resigned from the position of Chief Executive Officer of the
Company w.e.f 12t October,2018. Ms. Abhilasha Singh resigned from the position of Company Secretary of
the Company w.e.f 2d November, 2018 and Ms. Rashmeet Kaur was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from 23 January,2019.

Except as mentioned above, there are no changes in the directors and key managerial personnel of the
Company.

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors met 5 times on April 19, 2018; May 8, 2018;
July 24, 2018; October 16, 2018; and January 23, 2019. The time gap between two meetings did not exceed
120 days. The summary of number of meetings attended by each Board Member is as under:

S.No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended
1z Mr. Mohit Jain 5
Z Ms. Nithya Easwaran 4
3 Mr. Jairam Sridharan 5

Declaration by Independent Director

The company has received declaration from Ms. Nithya Easwaran, Independent Director stating
that she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards SS-1 and SS-2 with respect
to Board Meetings and General Meetings respectively specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.



DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, and save as otherwise mentioned
elsewhere in this Report, the Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, confirm that:

a)

b)

c)

d)
e)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019, the applicable
accounting standards, have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material
departures; whenever applicable;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year i.e. March 31, 2019 and of the losses of the Company for that
period;

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a going concern basis;

The Company not being a listed Company is not required to lay down the internal financial controls to
be followed by the Company; and

the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ONSERVATION OF TE OLOGY ABSORPTION, F IGN_EX GE EARNIN AND
OUTGO:

The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as under:

a)

Conservation of Energy:

Steps taken for conservation Since the Company is not engaged in any

manufacturing  activity, issues relating to

Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of conservation of energy are not relevant to its

energy

functioning. However, energy conservation receives
attention at all levels. All efforts are made to
conserve and optimize use of energy.

Capital investment on energy conservation
equipment’s

b) Technology Absorption:

Efforts made for technology absorption The Company has not imported technical know-how.

Benefits derived Your Company has not established any separate R&D

Expenditure on Research &Development, if any | facilities.

Details of technology imported, if any

Year of import

Whether imported technology fully absorbed

Areas where absorption of imported technology
has not taken place, if any

c)

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo :
Rs. in 000’

Earnings Nil

Cutgo Rs. 31,307




DISCLOSURE IN TERMS OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,

P D 1.2

Your Company has formulated and adopted a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace and
has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the
year under report, no complaint relating to sexual harassment was received by the Company.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

» Inview of losses incurred during the year, Board does not propose to transfer any amount to reserves.

» The Company has not granted any loans or made investments in terms of provisions of Section 186 of
the Companies Act 2013.

» The Company doesn’t have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associates.

» No material changes and commitments occurred between the end of financial year 2018-19 and the date
of this report which may affect the financial position of the Company.

» During the year under review, Your Company was not required to maintain any cost records under
provisions of Section 148 of Companies Act,2013 and rules made thereunder.

» The provisions related to Corporate Social Responsibility as enumerated in section 135 of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are not applicable

on the Company.

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulator/court/tribunal which may impact

the going concern and company’s operations in future.

» The Company has established process to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate key financial, operational,
business & compliance risks.

» The Company, being a wholly owned subsidiary company is not required to constitute Audit Committee
and Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

» No fraud has been reported by auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

> The Company has laid down adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting to be followed
by the Company and such internal financial controls were operating effectively.

W ECIATION:

The Directors wish to convey their appreciation to all the members, customers, bankers, government
departments and other stakeholders for their invaluable support to Company. The Directors also wish to
extend the heartiest gratitude to the employees of the Company at all levels for their hard work, dedication
and commitment, which have enabled the Company to grow at an unprecedented pace.
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By order of the Board /\@pﬁ
For Accelyst Solutions Private Limited ’Zm @A

rﬁﬂ\f 2%‘02\"?_ ?( Lk 7)

Jairam Sridkaran S,
Director _~Director 7 x 027
DIN:07945124 DIN:051653%0

Date: April 17,2019
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure I

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2019

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management
& Administration) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U72900MH2008PTC185202

Registration Date

29/07/2008

Name of the Company

Accelyst Solutions Private Limited

S hied o

Category/Sub-category
Company

of

the

Company Limited by Shares/Indian Non Government
company

contact details

5.| Address of the Registered office &

2nd Floor, Unit no. 205-206, Plot no. 1 Vaibhav Chambers,
Bandra Kurla Complex Mumbai 400051

6.| Whether listed company

Unlisted

7.| Name, Address & contact details of
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg,
Mumbai-400083

Contact No:-022-49186000

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or
more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S.No. | Name and Description of main products /[ NIC Code of the| % to total turnover

connections and data cards etc, distribution of
mutual fund & insurance services

services Product/service of the company
Online marketing and sales promotion solutions,
providing facilities to recharge online prepaid,

1 postpaid mobile phones connections, DTH 64990 100%

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S1 | NAME AND ADDRESS | CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of | Applicable
NO | OF THE COMPANY SUBSIDIARY/ shares Section
ASSOCIATE held
1 ‘;x.ls Bank: 140, Holding Section 2(46)
rishul, 3rdFloor, Opp 4 .
S thetbinsic Temnle Company 100% of Companies
Ak Pl | L65110G]1993PLC020769 Act 2013
Law Garden, Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad 380006




V.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

1) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of | No. of Shares held at the end of theyear  [%
Shareholders the year IChan
Demat Physica |Total % of |Demat Physic |Total % of B° .
| Total al Total [C"F'R
Share Shar .
e
ear
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a)  Individual/ |
HUF 3 i L i i i i
b) Central Govt |- = - 2 & = 3 : i
c) State Govt(s) |- e 2 % 5 = 5 - =
d) Bodies Corp. = 2 2 '
e) Banks / FI 679682661 |*1 679682662 (100 679682662 - **679682662 | 100 | -
f) Any other § - = £ - r
Sub total (A}{1) |679682661 |*1 679682662 [100 **679682662 B **679682662 | 100

(2) Foreign

a) Individuals
(Non - Resident
Individuals/
Foreign
Individuals

b) Bodies |

Corporate

¢) Institutions

d) Any other
(specify)

Sub total (A)(2)

Total
Shareholding of
promoter and
promoter group
A = (A -+
(A2}

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govi(s)




e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i} Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

) Others

(specify)

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas
Corporate Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies -
DR

Sub-total (B}(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total
(A+B+C)

679682661

!

679682662

100

679682662

**679682662

100




* Being 1 share held by individual as nominee of Axis Bank Ltd., the holding company. The beneficial
ownership of 1 share is with Axis Bank Ltd.

** Being 60 shares held by individuals as nominees of Axis Bank Ltd., the holding company. The beneficial
ownership of 60 shares is with Axis Bank Ltd.

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter-

SN | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the
0. | Name year year
5 Yo change
0, 5
tﬁtal °f 104 of Shares t,ztal oﬂ%of Shares'™ i
Pledged/ Pledged /shareholdi
Shares No. of Shares ne  durin
No. of Shares of e encumbere Shares of encumbere 18 g
d to total d to totaltheyear
compan compan
§ shares hares
1 Axis Bank Ltd. | *67,96,82,662 | 100% - **67,96,82,662|100%

* Including 1 share held by individual as nominee, the beneficial ownership for which is with Axis Bank Ltd.,
the holding company.

** Including 60 shares held by individuals as nominees of Axis Bank Ltd., the holding company. The beneficial
ownership of 60 shares is with Axis Bank Ltd.

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

- NO CHANGE
S | Name of | Shareholding at the | Change in shareholding during the year Cumulative
N | shareholder beginning and at the Shareholding during
end of the year the year
No. of | %of | Date Reason Increase (+)/ | No. of | % of
shares total Decrease (-) | shares total
ishares of] in shares
company shareholding of
compan
y

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):

NOT APPLICBLE




SL For Each of the Top | Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative shareholding | Shareholding at the end of
No. 10 Shareholders of the year during the year the year
No. of shares | % of total No. of | Date of | No. of | % of total
shares of | shares allotment. shares shares of
company Transfer etc. company
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Shareholding at
. the beginning and | Change in shareholding during the | Cumulative Shareholding
2::;913?‘:;%:: at the end of the | year during the year
SN | and each Key yerw o
Manaperiil o Date Reason | Increase (+)/ % of total
geria Yo of
Personnel No: ) eotar Decrease: (-] | ng, of shares | SEESE. of
shares in the
shares ;
shareholding company
1 *Mr. Jairam Sridharan
Asat31.03.2018 | *1 Negligible * Negligible
03.04.2018 | Transfer | (+)9 ¥ 10 Negligible
Asat31.03.2019 | **10 Negligible 10 Negligible
2. | *Mr. Mohit jain
Asat31.03.2018 | - " "
03.04.2018 | Transfer | (+)10 **10 Negligible
Asat 31.03.2019 | **10 Negligible #+10 Negligible

* 1 share is held by Mr. Jairam Sridharan as a nominee of Axis Bank Ltd. The beneficial ownership of said

share is with Axis Bank Ltd.

**10 shares each are held by Mr. Jairam Sridharan and Mr. Mohit Jain as a nominees of Axis Bank Ltd. The
beneficial ownership of said shares are with Axis Bank Ltd.

V.

INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment.
Secure‘d . Unsecured i Total
excluding Deposits
4 Loans Indebtedness
deposits

the financial year
i) Principal

ii) Interest due but

Indebtedness at the beginning of

not
iii) Interest accrued but not due -

Amount
paid

Total (i+ii+iii)




Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
e Addition
Principal - 320,000,000 - 320,000,000
[nterest - 7,446,559 - 7,446,559
e Reduction
Principal = =
Interest o = 2
Net Change - 327,446,559 - 327,446,559
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount | - 320,000,000 - 320,000,000
ii) Interest due but not paid | - - - -
iii) [nterest accrued but not due 7,446,559 - 7,446,559
Total (i+ii+iii) 327,446,559 - 327,446,559

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NOT APPLICABLE

SN.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total Amount

1

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)

of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,

1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)

Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

W

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Ac

Remuneration to other directors :

in Rs.

SN.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Director

Total Amount

Independent Directors

Ms. Nithya Easwaran

Fee for attending board committee meetings

2,50,000.00

2,50,000.00

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

2,50,000.00

2,50,000.00

Other Non-Executive Directors

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify




Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

2,50,000.00

2,50,000.00

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C.Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Amount in Rs.

SN | Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
Remuneration
Ajay Bhutani- Rahul Abhilasha Singh Rashmeet Total
Chief Executive [Vermani -Company Secretary [Kaur -
Officer _Chief Company
Finance Secretary
Officer
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per | 61,55674 23,17,823 | 3,86,442 1,20,201 89,80,140
provisions
contained in
section 17(1) of
the Income-tax
Act, 1961
(b) Value of
perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of
salary under
section  17(3)
Income-tax Act,
1961
Stock Option [ ----- | e — ---
Sweat Equity =~ | - | e | e ---
Commission | === | eeeee e ---
-as%ofprofit |- e --
others, specify... [ - | e | aee- --
5i Others, please specify | 7,188 16,397 14,133 - 2,37,718
Total 61,62,861 23,34,220 | 4,00,575 1,20,201 92,17,858




VIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Penalty | Authority Appeal made,
Companies Act | Description / Punishment/ | [RD / NCLT/ |if any (give
Compounding COURT] Details)

fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Pemalty |- e T[S

Punishment |- | T [

Compounding |- |- T T

B. DIRECTORS

Pepalty == 0 e e | s

Punishment | ----- = | . T [

Compounding | ----- |- | N |

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Pemalty @ |- = | e T T

Pupnishment |- = | — . T |

Compounding | ---— = |- |

By order of the Board e
For Accelyst Solutions Private Limited _~<\0Ng }3?

f— \ %

=7 =T
1 B
” \

" ___../]’a'iﬂram Sridharan
Director *  Director e
DIN: 07945124 DIN: 05165390

QED

Date: April 17, 2019
Place: Mumbai



Annexure - 2

E NO. AQC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length
transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm'’s length basis.
NOT APPLICABLE
Z Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
S. Name (s) of | Nature of | Duration of the | Salient terms of the | Date of | Amount
NO. | the related | contracts/ contracts/ contracts or | approval | paid as
party & | arrangements arrangements/ | arrangements or | by the | advances, if
nature of | /transaction transaction transaction including the | Board any
relationship value, if any
1. Freecharge Cross-charge for | Valid till 31st | Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Payment services e.g.: March, 2020 in ordinary course of | Applicable
Technologies | Payroll Services business and at Arm’s
Pvt. Ltd. - | Employee Length.
Fellow Support Services, Consideration to be
Subsidiary Customer mutually decided by the
Support Services, parties to transaction.
Professional
services,
IT services,
Administrative
services
2 Freecharge Right to use | Valid till 31st| Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Payment Agreement- office | January, 2020 | in ordinary course of | Applicable
Technologies | space in | (terminated on | business and at Arm's
Pvt. Ltd. - | Salarpuria 30t November, | Length.
Fellow Adonis, 2018) Consideration to be
Subsidiary Bengaluru Valid till 31st | charged proportionately
Right to use- | December, on actual.
office space in | 2020
Cyber Green, | Valid till 30t
Gurgaon (16t | April, 2021
Floor) Valid till 31st
August, 2023




Right to use-
office space in
Vaibhav

Chambers,
Bandra Kurla
Complex,
Mumbai
Right to use
Agreement
(including
Addendum)-
office space in
Salarpuria
Emporium,
Bengaluru
Freecharge Payment Continuous Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Payment Gateway Service in ordinary course of | Applicable
Technologies | Agreement business and at Arm'’s
Private Ltd- Length.
Fellow Consideration/Charges
Subsidiary to be as per Agreement
Freecharge Loan Agreement | Valid till 18% | Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Payment November, in ordinary course of | Applicable
Technologies 2019 or upon | business and at Arm’s
Private Ltd - prepayment of | Length.
Fellow Loan Consideration/Charges
Subsidiary whichever  is | to be as per Agreement
earlier
Freecharge Asset  Purchase | Valid till 18t | Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Payment Agreement May, 2019 in ordinary course of | Applicable
Technologies business and at Arm’s
Private Length.
Limited- Consideration/Charges
Fellow to be as per Agreement
Subsidiary
Axis  Bank | Internet Payment | Continuous Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Ltd. - | Gateway in ordinary course of | Applicable
Holding Merchant business and at Arm’s
Company Services Length.
Consideration to be
mutually decided by the
parties to transaction
Axis  Bank | Promotion Valid till 2nd | Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Ltd. - | Program January, 2020 in ordinary course of | Applicable
Holding business and at Arm’s
Company Length.

Consideration/Charges
to be as per Agreement




Not

8 Axis  Bank | Banking Services | Continuous Transaction are entered NIL
Ltd. - in ordinary course of | Applicable
Holding business and at Arm’s
Company Length.

Consideration to be
mutually decided by the
parties to the
transaction.

9 Axis  Bank | Business Continucus Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Ltd. - | Correspondent in ordinary course of | Applicable
Holding First Addendum business and at Arm'’s
Company to Business Length.

Correspondent Consideration to be
(Consideration mutually decided by the
for PPI Business) parties to transaction
Second
Addendum to
Business
Correspondent
for Axis Digital
Savings Account
(ASAP Account)
Third Addendum
to Business
Correspondent
(Technology
Service Provider
for Wallet and
Gift Instrument)
Fourth
Addendum to the
BC  Agreement
(IMPS Services)
Fifth Addendum
to the BC
Agreement
(Instant Personal
Loan)

Sixth Addendum
to the BC
Agreement
(Debit EMI
Services)

10 | Axis  Bank | Bharat Bill | Continuous Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Ltd - Holding | Payment Services in ordinary course of | Applicable
Company Agreement business and at Arm's

Length.
Consideration to be as
per the Agreement.




11 | Axis  Bank | Sanction Letter | Twelve months | Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Limited for Overdraft | or  date of | in ordinary course of | Applicable
(Holding Limit to Accelyst | maturity of the | business and at Arm’s
Company) Fixed Deposit | Length.

whichever  is | Consideration/Charges
earlier. as per Saction Letter.

12 | Axis  Bank | Reimbursement | Not Applicable | Transaction are entered | Not NIL
Limited for marketing in ordinary course of | Applicable
(Holding and business and at Arm'’s
Company) advertisement Length

expenses Consideration to be as
per actuals.

By order of the Board of Directors
Accelyst Solutions Private Limited

Jairam Srldh\a@

iTE _Pirector
DIN: 07945124/ DIN: 05165390

Date: April 17,2019
Place: Mumbai




Sanjay Chugh
B Com (H), F.C.S.
Company Secretary

317, Vardhman Plaza —I,
J Block Commercial Complex,
Rajouri Garden,

New Delhi-110 027
9810770237 (M), 011-41443668

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2019

(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To
The Members,

ACCELYST SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED,
2nd Floor, unit no. 205-206, Plot no. 1,
Vaibhav Chambers, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Mumbai - 400051

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by ACCELYST SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(hereinafter called the Company). The Company is an unlisted Deemed Public Company,
limited by shares and is an Indian Non- Government Company. Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
- financial year ended on March 31, 2019 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there
under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company
during the audit period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015) (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during
the audit period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the
audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue & Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 and Listing Agreement for Debt Securities;
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

vi) The Management has identified and confirmed the following law as applicable to the
Company.

a) Employee Provident Fund Act 1952
b) ) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the
following:

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(2) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock
Exchange/SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above without any
material non-compliance.

| further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices are given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and in few
cases the same has been sent at shorter notice after complying the provisions and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
The Minutes were generally circulated within the prescribed time except in few
cases. Further note that Board minutes of the last quarter ending March 2019 shall
be signed in the next Board Meeting scheduled to be held in April 2019 after my
report.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

SANJAY CHUGH
COMPANY SECRETARY
FCS No: 3754

C.P.NO. 3073

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 10, 2019

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure- A and
forms an integral part of this report.
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Sanjay Chugh

317, Vardhman Plaza -1,
B Com (H), F.C.S.

] Block Commercial Complex,

Company Secretary Rajouri Garden,
New Delhi-110 027
9810770237 (M), 011-41443668
ANNEXURE A’
To,

The Members,

ACCELYST SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
2nd Floor, unit no. 205-206, Plot no. 1,
Vaibhav Chambers, Bandra Kurla Compliex,
Mumbai - 400051

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conductethe affairs of the company.

1

SANJAY CHUGH
COMPANY SECRETARY
FCS No: 3754

C.P.NO. 3073

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 10, 2019
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2nd & 3rd Floor
Golt View Corporate Tower - B

'%%‘ o Sector - 42, Sector Road

Chartered Accountants Gurugram - 122 002, Heryana, India
Tel 1 +81 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS F inancial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

§.1. Batlibol & Co. LLP, a Limited Labiiity Partnership with LLP tdentity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Oftice £ 22, Camac Streat, Block ‘B, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Chartered Accountants

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended from time to time) issued
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desi gn audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 2
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Chartered Accountanis

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account ;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended from time time) issued by ministry of corporate affairs;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;




(g) Inour opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid
/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

()  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses:

(k)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Nilangshu Katriar {{vi¢
Partner E\ ’o ]
Membership Number: 058814 o

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: April 17, 2019



Chartered Accountants

Annexure 1

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even

date

Re: Accelyst Solutions Private Limited (‘the Company®)

(1) (2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of

(b

(©

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v

(vi)

(vii)(a)

(b)

(c)

(viii)

fixed assets.

Fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
identified on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable properties,
included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the requirements under clause 3(i)(c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under clause 3(ii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership firm or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and
(¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained by the management, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services of the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions of
investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, wealth-tax, customs duty, excise duty are not
applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no dues of income tax, service
tax, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or government or dues to debenture
holders.




(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xit)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any money
way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix)
is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based on our the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by
the Company or no material fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has been
paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based on our the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The
provisions of Section 177 the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of Section 45-I1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Chartered Accountants

Annexure 2

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ACCELYST SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
(“the Company”™) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
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statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

AU ‘-.J\xu,L

per Nilangshu Katriar
Partner

Membership Number: 058814
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: April 17,2019




Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rs.'000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

N As at As at
RS March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,972 9,003
Capital work-in-progress 3 619 232
Intangible assets 4 2,050 890
Financial assets
Other financial assets 5 100 -
Prepayments 26,328 34,444
Other nen-current assets 6 6,42,314 5,52,024
Total nen-current assets 6,73,383 5,96,593
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 7 14,407 6,78,468
Trade receivables 8 2,912 2,023
Cash and cash equivalents 9 17,870 89,151
Bank balances other than above 10 54,298 1,339
Other financial assets 5 1,46,077 99,328
Prepayments 21,437 29,158
Total current assets 2,57,001 8,99,467
Total assets 9,30,384 14,96,060
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 11 67,96,827 67,96,827
Other equity
Retained earnings (99.70,625) (91,77,680)
Share premium 12 34,69,736 34,69,736
Total equity 2,95,938 10,88,883
Non-current liabilities
Net employee defined benefit liabilities 13 2,619 2192
Total non-current liabilities 2,619 2,192
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 3,27,447 -
Trade and other payables 15 2,70,236 327,217
Other financial liabilities 16 32,218 74,897
Net employee defined benefits liabilities 13 1,926 2,871
Total current liabilities 6,31,827 4,04,985
Total liahilities 6,34,446 4,07,177
Total equity and liabilities 9,30,384 14,96,060
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Accelyst Solutions Private Limited

CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Nilafigshu Katriar
Partner
Membershi Number: 058814
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Siddharth Mehta
Chief Executive Officer

Place of Signature: ashmeet Kaur
Date: April 17, 2019 Company Secretary



Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31. 2019
(All amounts in Rs.'000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Not For the year ended For the year ended
& March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Revenue from operations 1172 1,28,976 1,67,281
Other income 18 14,807 52,137
Finance income 19 21132 25824
Total income 1,70,915 2,45,242
Expenses
Service charges 20 3.06.335 2,73,533
Advertisement and publicity expenses 4,83,168 246,066
Employee benefits expense 22 84,199 1.85,585
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 3,389 6,807
Finance costs 24 8,340 1,00,863
Other expenses 25 71.972 82,686
Total expenses 9,63,403 8,95,540
Loss for the year (7,92,488) (6,50,298)
Exceptional items 26 391425
Loss for the year (7,92,488) (2,58,873)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
years:
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans (457) (572)
Income tax effect - -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (457) (572)
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (7,92,945) (2,59,445)
Loss per equity share [nominal value per equity share Rs.10]
(March 31,2018: Rs 10)
Basic and diluted computed on the basis of loss for the year attributable to equity 27 (1.17) (0.50)

holders of the Company (Rs.)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Partner \ |
Membershig) Number: 058814

Place of Signature:
Date: April 17,2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Accelyst Solutions Private Limited

Jairam Sridharan

Director

Siddharth Mehta
Chief Executive Officer

Q
Rﬁ{tl’(;

Company Secretary

Chief Finangk

Officer



Accelyst Selutions Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rs.'000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Laess for the year (7,92,488) (2,58,873)
Adjustment related to
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,991 6,547
Amortisation of intangible assets 398 260
Impairment of fixed assets - 128
Profit / Loss on sale of fixed assets (3,048) 2,752
Provision for doubtful debts (628) 1,023
Finance costs 8,272 1,00,757
Share-based payment expense - 85,595
Gain on sale of current investments (net) (16,183) (10,112)
Mark to market gain on current investment (56) (13,271)
Unwinding of discount on financial assets at amortised cost = (382)
Liabilities no longer required written back (9,408) (54,889)
Liability no longer required written back on account of settlement with group companies - (3,91.425)
Interest income on bank deposits (3,288) (1.952)
Operating flow before werking capital changes (8,13,438) (5,33,842)
Adjustment for change in working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (889) 1,02,.251
(Increase) / decrease in financial assets (1,19,144) 37,209
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments 15,836 (62,082)
Decrease in trade and other payables 47,574) (5,45,607)
Increase / (decrease) in net employee defined benefits liabilities (975) 1,244
Increase / (decrease) in financial liabilities (42,679) 62,111
Cash used in operations (10,08,863) (9,38,716)
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (17,037) (4.260)
Net cash (used in) operating activities (A) (10,25,900) (9,42,976)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment (1,944) (232)
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment 7,088 201
Net Investment / redemption of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than (50,000) 151476
three months)
Purchase / redemption of current investments (net) 6,80,300 (6,55,085)
Net cash from investing activities (B) 6,35,444 (5,03,640)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of loan from related party 2,94,000 (43,43.645)
Bank overdraft from related party 26,000 -
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital - 64,95.829
Interest paid (825) (7,17,048)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 3,19,175 14,35,135
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (71,281) (11,480)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 89,151 1,00,631
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17,870 89,150
Components of cash and cash equivalents
With banks - on current account 8,190 1,705

- on current accounts with related parties 9,680 87.446
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 9) 17.870 89,151

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the {inancial statements.

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Ind AS 7 on Cash Flow Statements notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as ammended from time to time) as issued by Ministry of Company Affairs.

2. The above cash flow statement has been compiled from and is based on the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019 and the related Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that
date.

3. Figures in brackets indicates cash outflow.

4. Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year classification.

As per our report of even date.

For S. R. Batlibei & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
/ %

) \

per Nilfngshu Katriar
Partner Director
\lemhcn}lip Number: 058814

\ 4

Siddharth Mehta 2 epimani

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financm
Place of Signature: ( Rashineet Kaur

Date: April 17,2019 Company Secretary
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Aceelyst Sofutions Private Limited
Nuotes to the financial statements
(Al amounts in Rs 000, exceptper share daty and as stated otherwise)

I

—

i~

1. Corporate information

Accelyst Solutions Private Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in India on July 29, 2008 with the main objective 1o provide sales promaetion techniques.
solutions and services so retailers and-mantficturers in India and abroad, through internet; web and on-line electronic media. The Company owns and operates 2
web and mobile based recharge platforn ealled Freecharge which enables users fo recharge mobile talktime. pay mobile bills. utility bills. data cards. direct 10
Bome (TTH) recharge and metro bills ete.

The registered office of the company is located at 2nd Floor, unit no. 205-206. Plot no. 1 Vaibhav Chambers. Bandra Kurla Complex Mumbai Bandra Suburban
Maharashira 400051 India,

The financial statements were authoriséd-for issne in accordance with resolution of directors on April 17. 2019,

2.0 Significant accounting policies

Basis-of preparation
These financial staterments-have beenprépared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under seetion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as ammended from time o time) as issued by Ministry of Company Affairs.

sets and habilities which have been measured at fair value or

The financial statements have been prepared-on a historical cost basis; except for the following
revalued amount;
- Certain financial assets‘and Habilites méasured at fair value (referdccounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statement has been presented in Indion Rupees to nearestthousand (Rs.'000). except as stated otherwise.

5

Summary of significant-accounting policies

a. Currentversus non-current classification

The Company preseints asselsand labilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classilication. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended 1o be s0ld or consumed in normal-operating cycle

- Held:priniarily for the purpose of tiading
- Expected 10 be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash orcash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged ortised to settle a lability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A linbility is cumrent when:

- W is.expected to be settled in normal-operating cycle

- Tris held primarily for the purpose of trading

- 11 15 due to be settled within twelve nionths afler the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to deferthe settlement of the Hability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

The operating cycle is.the. time between: thie acquisition of assets for.processing and theirrealisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified

twelve months as its operating cycle, )
. Forcign.currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees to nearest thousand (Rs.'000), which is also the Company

functional currency.,

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the spot rates a1 the date the wansaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for
practical reasons. the Company uses anayerage rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the dafe of the transaction,

Monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies are yanslated at the fungtional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

ised in statement of profit or loss with the exception of the following:

Exchange differences arising on settlement-or translation of monetary items are reco
- Exchange differences arising on monetary -items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investmient in a foreign operation are recognised in profit or Joss in
the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the individual financial statements of the for¢ign operation. as appropriate. In the: linancial statemients
that include the foreign operation and: the reporting entity {c.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation is a subsidiary). such exchange
differences-are recognised.initially iy OCl These exchange differences are reclassified from equity 1o profit or loss on disposal of the net invesiment.

- Exchange iffeyences arising on monctiry-items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Company
reeognised in OCT until thener investmentis:disposed of. ar whichtinig; the cumulative aimount is reclassified to profit or loss.
- Tax charges and eredit§ atiributableito €xchange differences on thosemonetary items are also recorded in OCTL

s net ivestment of a toreign operation. These are

Notmanetary fiems that gre measured T terms of historical cost iy a fordign curreticy are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of theipitial
tronsachions. Now-monetary items measuied at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates @ the date when the fair value is
determingd. The gam orloss arising an translation of non-menetary items measured at fair value is treated in line wath the recognition of the gain or loss. onthe

change in fair value of the item (Le. {ranslation differences on items whose {air value gain or loss is recognised i other comprehensive income (‘QCE) or
statement of profit or loss are also recognised m OCT or statement of profit or loss. respectively).

(This space fs been intemwionally lett blank)




Aceelyst Solutions Private Limited
Notes o the financial statements
(All amounts in Rs.”000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

o. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as. derivatives / investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price thit would be
received to sellanasset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction bétiveen market participants at the measurement date. The fair valugtnéasurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset-or transfer the liability takes place either:
-1 the principal-niarket for the asset.or Tiability, or
- Iu the absence ofa principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advamageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability Is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or Lability. agsuming that
marker panicipants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into aceount a market participant’s ability to generate cconomic benefits by using the assetin its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset-in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation t¢¢hniques that are appropriate-in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fir valie, maximising
the use of relevait observable inpats and minimising the use of unobservable inpufs.

All assets and habilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statéments are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on-the lowest levehinput that is significant to thefair value measurement as a whole:

- Level | — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirecily observable

- Level 3 - Valuation techniquesior which the lowest fevel juput that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have oceurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a wholeY at the end of
each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valoation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant Habilities. such as contingent
consideration. For the purpose of fiir value disclosures. the company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature. charagteristics and
risks of the asset orHability and the Tevel of the fair value higrarchy as explained above.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that thie economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured regardless
of when the payment is being made: Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. taking into account confractual defined
terms of payment.and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of yovernment. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met befoie revenue is
recognized:

Revenue from commission fecs

Revenues from operating an infemet portal providing recharge and bill payment services are recognised upon successful recharge / payment confirmation for the
ransactions executed. The Company-collects taxes on behalfiol the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing fo the Corpany. Hence,
they are excluded from revenue,

Other operating revenue
Revenues frons ancillary activitiese.g. freefund code generation fees . convenience fee , sale of coupons and vendor's application installation ele. i recognised
upan rendering of services.. Upon expiry of validity of freefund codes sold by company, income is recognised to the extent of value of such codes.

Vuriable consideration
riable amount,-the company estiimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entited in exchange lor
ieant

I the consideration in a contract fnéludes a v
transterring the'goods 1o the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at ¢ontract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that wsig
revenue reversal Jnsthe amount of cumulative revenue recogiiSed will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subseguently
resolved, Some contracts for'the sale“of elecronics equipment provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates. The rights of retdrtand volune
rebiates give fise to-variable consideration.

11 Rights of veturn

Certain contragts provide a customer with a right 1o return the goods within a $pecified period. The Company uses the expected value method w@estimate the
gouds that will notbe returned because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The requirements
inind AS 115 on constraining estiimates of variable consideration are also applied in order 1o determine the amount of variable consideration that eanbe included
i1 the trapsaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned. instead of revenue. the Company recognises a refund lability. A right of vetii asset-(and
carrespondiiig adjustment to chanee’in inventory is also recoghised for the right to.recover products from a custoner.

1} Volume rebates

Phe Contpany provides retrogpeetive volume rebat
in the comiier, Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates; ic Company
applies the most hikely amount method Tor contracts with 8 single-volume threshold and the expected value method for contracts with more thanoiie volimse

to cenain customers once the quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold speciiied

threshold, The selocted methoil that best predicts the amount of variable considération is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contiined inthe
compaet. The Company then applies:he requirements on constraining estimates. of variable consideration and recognises a relund Hability for the expauted future

rebates.

Interest

Eor-all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. inferest inconic is recorded using the effective

interest rate (EIRY. EIR is the tate that exactly discounts the estimated futare cash payments or receipts over the expecied life of the financial istrmen or a

shorter perfod. where appropifate. to the gross carrving amount of the financial assel or to the amortised cost of a financial liability, Wheps ulnﬁw the
ST

effecnive duterest Fate. the Company estimates the expented ¢ash tlows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial ins
prepayanent. extengion. call andisimilar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance i
of profit or loss,



Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Nates to the financinl statements
(AN amounts in Rs.' 000, exeept per sharédata and as stated otherivise)

-

Unbitled revenne

Receivables are generally carred at thie priginal invoiced amount, less an allowance for doubtful receivables where there is objective evidence thar balances will
nothe recavered in full Usbilled receivables is recognised 1o the extent for the services not billed at the reporting date.

Tuxes

Currentincome tax

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid tothe tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act. 1961 enacted in Indix and wx
faws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that ave enacted

or substantively enacted. at the reporiing date,

Current income tax relating 1o items.recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Cugrent tax items we recognised inconclation to the underlying transaction either in OCH or directly in cquity. Management periodically evaluates positions

taken in the tax returns with respect Josituations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and cstablishes provisions where appropriite.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the Lability method on temporary differences beiween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the repoiting date.

Deferred tax labilities are-recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When'the deferred tax Tiability arises froniithe initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction. affécts neither the decounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- In vespect of taxable temporary differdnces associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures. when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresceable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all. deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Delerred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temiporary differences. and the carry forvard of
unused tax credits and unased tax losses.can be wtilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asSet relating 10°the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction that i§ not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, aftects neithérthe accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- Tn respect of deductiblé temporary differepees associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures. deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it4s probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be availablé againgt
which the temporary differences can be utilised,

The carrving amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each réporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable protit
will be available to allow all or part'of the deferved tax asset to bé utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are ré-assessed at ¢ach reporting date and are
récognised 16 the extent that it has beedme probable that future taxable profits will allowthe deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and Hablities
are measured at the1ax rates that are expecred to apply in the yearwhen the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) thal have
been enacted or substantively enacied atihe reporting date,

Deferred tax relating 1o ems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred
tax itenis-are recognisediin correlation to ihe underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deéferved tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilitics and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

i benefits acquired as part of a business combination. but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date. are recognised subsequently if new
information about facts and circumstances- change. Acquired deferred tax benelits recognised within the nieasurement period reduce goodwill refated i6-that
acquisition i they result-from new iformation obtained about factsand circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill igzero,
any remaining deferred ax benefits argrecognised in OCY capital reserve depending on the principle-explained for bargain purchase pains. All other sequired-tax
benefits realised are vecognised in statemicnt of profit or loss.

Praperty, plant and cquipment

Capital work in progress i stated at cogte net-of accumulated impainient loss, if any. Plant and equipment is stated at cost. net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. i anys Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs Tor fong-term construction
projects if the recognitioweriteria aré met When signiticant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Comparny depreciates them
separately based ontheir specifie useful lives. Likewise. when a major inspection is pérformed. its cost is recognised in the carrying amoeunt of the plant-and
equipment as @ replacementif the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and miaintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, Thepresent
vahue of theexpected costfor the decomimissioning ol an asset after s use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a proyision

are wet. Refer 1o note 17 and 34 regarding significant accoumting judgemems. estimates and assumptions and provisions for further information abott the

recorded decommissioning provision,

Contributions by cusiomers of items of property. plant and equipment (such as moulds) which require an obligation to supply eoods 10 the customer in the Fulire.

are recognised at the fair vidloe whenthe Company has control of the fteni. A corresponding eredit to contract liability is made. The Company may agiée fo
deliver one or more servides in exchange Tor the transferred ttem of property. plant and cquipment. such as connecting the customer to a vetwork. provigding the
customer with ongoing aceess to a supply ot goods or services. or both. The Company identifies the separately identifiable performance obligation included iy the
agreement.

i) Wonly one performunce obligation 15 ddentified. the Conipany recobnises revenue when the service is performed.
1) I an engoing service is identified agpartol the agreement. the pertod over which revenye s recognised for that service is generally determined by the teits of
the agreement with the customer. If {hesigreement does not specify a period. the revenue is recognised over a period no longer thad the useful life of the
transferied asset used to provide the ongoing service

fi)- £ more than one separdtely identifiable performance obligation is identitied. the fair value of the total consideration received or reccivable Ty

RBAASIMRIICTH

will bealiocated 1o each service and thie recdgnition criteria of Ind AS 113 are theén applied to cach service.



Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financiab-statements
(All amounts in Rs.'000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

el

Depreciation is ealculated on a:straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Cafegory of assets Estimated useful life
Computers 3 - G yenrs
Office machinery and .equipments S years
Furpiture and fitiings 1 years
Mobile devices ) 2 years

Depreciation on assets purchisédiduring the period is provided on pro rata basis from the date of purchase of fixed assets,

Leasehold Improvements are amortised on a straight line basis over the lower of lease term or useful life of the respective assets.

An itens of propeity, plant and ¢quipment and any significant part initially recognised is derccognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
sing on-derecognition of e asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposat proeceds and the

expeeted from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss a
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or fuss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at cach financial year end. and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate,

Intangibie asscts

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination:is their fair
value at the date-of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulatéd impairment
losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in stafement of profit
orlossin the periodn which:the expenditure is incurved.

The useful lives of intangible ‘assets dre assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assefs with finite lives are.amortised over the useful cconomic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that (hé intangible
asset may be impaited. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least atilie-end of
each reporting period, Changes in the expected usetul fife or the expected pattem of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the’ asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method. as appropriate. and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation: expense on
intangible asseis with finite lives 1s recognised in the statement'of profit or foss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another dsset.

Intangible asscts with indefinite useful lives are not amortised. but are tested for impaiment annually, cither individually or at the cash-generating unit-level, The
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to deterniine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not. the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on:a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arisihg from derecognition of an intangible assei are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carryingamount of the
asset and are'recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Borrowing costs

Barrowing costs directly attribufable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 1. pet ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of ihic assel. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consistof interest-and other casts that:an entity incurs in connetion with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences (o the extent
vegarded as an adjustment to the barrowing costs.

Leases

The determination of whether-aarrangement is (or containg-a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. Thearmmngement
isvor-contains. a lease i fulfiligntiof the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific assctor assets and the arrangement conveys.a right to use the asset or
assets, even ifthat right is not explicitly specified in an avangerent,

Company as 2 lessee
A lease is classified at the incéption date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.

Fiance feases are capitalised atitie commencement of the kease st the inception date fair value of the leased property or. if lower, at the present valite of the
minimum lease paynients. Lease pavments are apportioned betsvéen finance charges and reduction of the lease Hability s0 as to achieve a constangralcd of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are fe¢ognised in linprice: costs in the statement of profit or loss. unless they are directlyatiributable 1o
qualifying assets. inwhich case they are capitalized in accordayiee with the Company
are recognised as expenses incthe:periods in which they are incirred

general policy on the borrowing costs (See note 2.2.h). Confiigent rentals

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful Hife of the asset, However. if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership'b¥'the end of
the fease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useiul life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are-recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Company as a lessor

Leases m which the Company does not transfi ks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases, Remal income

from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis wver the erm of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and-arranging ai
opernting lease arg added to thecarrying amount of the feased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent-rents are

- substantiaily all the o

recognised as revenue in the pegiotl it which they are carned.

Leases are classified:as finance leases when substantially alf-of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee

lessees under Binance leases are fecorded as receivables at the Company™s net invéstment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated 1o a
as:toreflect a constany periodicirate of return on the net investient owtstanding inrespect of the lease,
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j- Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses. af éach reporting date. whether there is an indieation that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists; or when annual impaizment
testing for an asset is required. the Conipany estimates the asscl’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or-cash-
generating unit's ({CGUY) Tair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is detevmined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate eash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Companys of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its

recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down Lo its recaverable amount.

In assessing valug in use, the estimaied future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of mopey-.and the risks specific 1o the asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are Taken
into-account. If no such traisactions can'be identified. an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, guoted

share prices for publiely traded companies or other available fair vatie indicators,

The Company bases its impairment ealéulation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to
which the individual assets are allocated: These budgets and forecast ¢aleulations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is caleulated and applied to project fiture cash flows afier the fifth vear. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recént
budgets/iforecasts. the Company extrapolates cash Hlow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case. this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or couittry or
countries in which the entity operates. or for the market in which the asset is used.

Imipairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus
taken to OCL For such properties, thedmpairment is recognised in OClup to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised camrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life as estimated by the management.

For asscts an assessment is made at ¢ach reporting date to determinewhether there Is ansindication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. If such .indicationzexists; the Company estimates the asscet’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss: is
reversed ouly if there has been a change 1 the assumptions used 0 determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal s limited: so that the carrymg dmiount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have:been
determined, net of depreciation, had.ito impairment loss been recognised-for the asset incprior years. Such reversal is-recognised in the statement of profit or 1083
unlesstheasset is carmied ata revaluédiamotint, in which case. the revérsal is treated as a'revaluation increase,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be yequired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all- of a provision to bereimbursed. for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a scparate asset, but only:when
the reimbuysement is virtdally certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to:the
lability. When discounting s used, the increase i the provision due 1o the passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost.

Omcrouseontracts

If the-Company-has. a conlract that is:giierous. the present obligationunder the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, before a separate
provigion foran onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment Joss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous conlract is o contract underwhich the unaveidable costs (i.e.. the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the
abligations under the contraiet exceed he economic benelits expected: to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net-cost.of
exiting from thie contract: which is the Tower ot the cost of tulfilling 1vand any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it.

Provision for bonus
Provision for bonus is recognised on time proportion basis over the period of service,

Retivement and other ermiployee benefits

Retirenient benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
provident fund. The Company recognizes.contibution pavable 1o e provident fund scheme as an expense. when ai employee renders the related serviee, Ifthe
conribution pavable to the scheme 1opservice received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid. the deficit payable 1o the schioine is
recognized as a Hability after deducting the contribution atready paid, If the contribution;already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balande sheet date, then exeess igretornized as an asset 1o the exient that the pre-pavinent will leéad to. for example. a reduction in future payment or¢ash
refund,

In accordance with Indiandaw, the Company provides for grawsiny. a defined benefit retitement plan {(the “Grataity Plan™) covering all employees. The Gratuity
Plan provides a lump suivpayment wvested emplovees on retirement or on termination.of employment for an amount based on the respective employec’s:salary
and theyears oF employment with ihe:.Company.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benetit plan is derermined using the projected unit credit method based on an actuarial valuation perforied by
an independent actuary,

Remeasurements, comprising of acuiatial gains and losses. excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability. are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a carresponding debit or eredit 1o retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they oceur. Remeasurenients are
net reclassified o statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss on the eartier of:

= Thedate ofthe plan amtendment or curtaitment. and

- Thedateithat the Company recognises relpted restruchwring cosis

Net interestis-caleutared by applying the diseount mre to the net defined benefit Hability or asser. The Company recognises the following ¢hange,
defined benefit oblivation as an expensy iy the statenient of profit or oy

- Service Costs comprising current servictosls. pasi-service costs. gains and losses on curtailments and non routine setilements: and

< Nebnterest expense or income
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m, Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contractthat gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial dssets

Iuitial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of finandial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs that
are attributable to-the-acquisition:of the financial asset.

Subsequent measureinent

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Debt instruments at amortised cost

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehiensive income (FVTOCH)

- Debt instruments; derivatives:and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity instruments measured at-fairvalue through other compiehensive income (FVTOCTH

Debtinstruments at amortised cost

A debt instrument” is 'measured at the amontised cost if both the following conditions are met

a) The assét 1s held-within a business model whose objective 15'to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specitied dates to cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the pringipal amount
outstanding,

After initial mepsurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
caleulated by taking into account'any-discount or premium. of acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income inthe profit-orioss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to tradé and other
regeivables,

Dehtinstrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debtinstrument® iy classified as at:the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

4). The objective of the:business model ds achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

by The asset’s contractual cash:flows represent SPPIL

Debt instruments included within' the FVTOCI category are measured initiaily as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements-are recogtiized
in-the QCL However, the Company tecognizes interest income; impairment losses-& reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit.or loss,
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previvusly recognised in OCHis reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss. Interest earned
whilst holding FVTOCLdebt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debtinstrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for:debtinstruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost oras FYTOCL is
classified ag at FVIPL: :
In-addition, the Company may:eléct-to designate a debt instrument. which otheiwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismateh®). The Company has
not designated any debt-instrument asat FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with-all changes recognized in the statement of profit or luss,

Equity investments

All equity invesients in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent considerationrecognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. Forall other cquity instruments. the Company.1iay: make an
imeyocable election to present in other comprehensive incomé subsequent changes: in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
istrument basis, The classificaion is:made on initial recognition ind is irevocable,

i the Company decides to classity aiequity instrument as at EVIOCL then all fair value changes on the instrument. excluding dividends, are recognized inthe
OCL There is no recyeling of the amounts from OCI fo statément of profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However. the Company may: transfer the
cumulative gain orioss withinequity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of @ Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from
the Compan iance sheet) wheit:

~ The rights to receive cash flows. frony the asset have expired, or

- The Company has iransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has asswmed an obligation to pay the received cash Hows in full without matevial
delay to a third party-under a “pass-thiough” arrangement; and either (u) the Company has translerred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or (b) the
Company hag neither transterred norretained substantially all the visks and rewards ol the asset. but has wansterred control of the assct.

When the Company has transferred itsrights to receive cash flows from on asset or has entered into o pass-thvough arrangement. it evaluates i and o what extent
it his retained the visks and fewards of ownership. When it:has neither mansfered nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset. nor
transterred control of thie asset: the Comipany continues to reeognise the trnsferredisset 1o the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. Inthat-case, the
Company also recognises an associated liability, The tansferred: agset and twe assoeiated lability are measured on a basis that réflects the rights and obligations
thatthe Company Hag tetained;

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the tansferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and thie
rasimuiy amount ofi¢onsideratioit that.the Company could be fequired 1o repay,

(This space his heen intenttonally left blank)
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Impairment of {inancial assets

Ivaccordance with Ind-AS. 109, the Company applies expected credit Joss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impaimient Toss on the following
financial assets and credif risk exposure!

a} Financial dssers thatard measured al amortised cost e.g.. loans, deposits. tade receivables and bank balance

b) Avaiiable for sale financial assets

¢) Lease receivables ander Ind AS17

4) Trade receivables or any contractughright to receive cash or another financial asset that vesult from transactions that are within the seope of Ind AS 18

The Company follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowange on:

- Trade receivables or contract revenue recéivables: and

- All lease receivables restilting from transactions within the scope of nd AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather. it recognises impainment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date, vight-from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure. the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
"L is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if creditvisk has

credit risk since injtial recognition. If creditrisk has not increased significantly, 12-month
increased significantly, lifetime ECL 18 used. If, in a subsequent period. credit quality of the instrument improves such that there 1s no longer a significant
inerease fncreditrisk sincé initial récognition, then the entity reveris {0 recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected ereditlosses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 1Z-month ECL is 2
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that'aré possible within 12.moiiths after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference bétiveen all contractuatcash flows that are due Yo the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows. an entity is required 1o consider:

- Al contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instument.
However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably. then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual
term of the financial instrument

- Cash flows from the sale of collateral hield or other eredit enhancements that are integral to the contractual tenns.

ECL impairment loss allowance (orreversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit or loss, This amount is
reflected under the head *other expenges™ in'the statement of profit or Joss. The balance sheet presemtation for vartous financial instruments is described below;

- Financial assets measured.as at amortised cost, contractual revenuge receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integia) part
of the measurement of those assets in the'balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net canrying amount. Untl the asset meets write-of eritéria, the Company
does not reduce impatrment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

- Available for sale financial assetsy Since financial assets are alresdyreflected at fair value, impaiment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather,
ECL amount is presentedas “accunnilated impairment amount” in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit nisk characteristicsawith the
objeciive of facilitatingan-analysis-thatis designed to enable significant incrcases in credit-risk to be identitied on a timely basis.

The Company does not.liave any purchased or originated credit-imipaired (POCY) findncial assets, p.e.. financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

Financial Habilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Habilities are classified, at initial yecognition, as financial Habilities at fair value through profit or Joss. loans and borrowings. payables as appropriate.
Al financial Habilities are recognised anitially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables. net of directly attributable transaction.costs.
The Company’s tinancial labilities includetrade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis and dertvative financial instruments;

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. as described below:

Finnciaklabilities at-fairvalue through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include finandialabilitics held for frading and finaneial labilities designated upon initial recognition ag at
fair value through profitorloss. Financial Babilities arc classitied a5 held for vading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near tefn This
category also includes derivative financial-instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedying instruments in hedge relationsliips as
defined:by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or lossés on liabilities held foruading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Finmeial Babilities designated upon initial-recognition at fair value through protit or loss are designated as such av the ioitial date of recognition. and only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied, For Habilities designated as FVTEL. fadr value gaing Josses atiributable so changes in own credin risk are recognized 5 OCL
These gains/ loss are not.subsequently fransferred to statement of profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or foss within gquity.
Al other changes i fairvalue of suclihability are recognised inn the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as-at-fair
vatue through profit and logs,

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently medsured at amortised cost using the EIR niethod, Gains and losses are
recognised in statement of profit or loss:when the Habilities are derecaynised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulated by wking-into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees ov costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amoitisation i included asifinance costs 1y the statement of profivorldss.

Dercepgiition
A financial diability is derecognised when ihe obli

ion under the Tability is dischi

by anéther from the same Tender on substantally different terms. or tie terms of an ex liabiliny ave substantially moditied. such an exchange or t

is-trented as the derecognition of the original Hiability and the recopnition of a new Hability, The difterence in the respective carrving mnounts is recog

stateiient of profi or los
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Embedded derivatives

An embedded desivative is 3 component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-denivative host contract —~ with the effect rhatsome of the
cash flows of the combined Instrument vary in a way similar to a standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the-cagh flows that
othenvise would be required by the contract 1o be moditied according 10 a specified interest rate, financial instrunient price, commodity price. forérini exchange
rate. index of prices or rates, creditrating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is wo specific to o
party to the confract. Reassessment only occurs if there is ¢ither a change in {he terms of the contract that significantly miodifies the cash flof§ that would
othenvisebe required or a veclagsilication of a financial asset-out of the fair value:through profit or loss.

i the hybrid contract contains.a host that is a financial asset'within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company doés not separate embedded derivaiives, Rathér: it
applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 1o the entire hybrid contract, Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for
#5 separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their ceonomic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are notheld for iading or designated at fair value'though profit or loss, These embedded derivatives are measured al fair value with changes in fair
alue recopnised in statement-of profitor loss. unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition. no reclassification is nade for financial
assets which are equity mqtmmuns anid financial liabilities, For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there 1\ A-change in
the business model for managing those assets. Changes to (he business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines
change in the business modelasia result of external or internal thanges which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident:1o-external
parties. A change .in the business model occurs when the Company cither begins. or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the
Company reclassifies financial asséts, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporfing period: following the ch‘mg,e in business model, The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
losses) or interest,

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currenily enforceable logal right to
offset the recognised amounts and thiere is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent inthé balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three nightlis or less,
which are subjecttoan insignificantrisk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statemeint-of cash flows, cash and cash cquivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above. net of cutstanding bank
overdrafls as they are considercdian integral part of the Company’s eash management,

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of company (after deducting preference dividends. and
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are tieated as a fraction of an equity
share to-the extent:that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted avérige numiber
ol equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue: share split. and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares) that-have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the company and theweighted
average number of shares ontstanding during the period are-adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. ’

Changes in acconnting policies and. disclosures

Niw and amended standards

The Company-applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. There is immaterial impact in the nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of these new
accounting siandards,

Several oiher amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have an impact on the {inancial statements of the. Company. The
Company has pot-early adopted anystandards or amendmenis that have been issugd:but are not vet effective.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contricts:with Customers

tnd AS 1S was issued on March 28:.2018 and supersedes Ind:AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applics. with limited gieeptions. to
all revemic arising from contracts with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with-customers and
requires that reveiue be recognised.at an amount that reflects the consideration o which an entity expects to be entitled in-exchange for tansivriing soods or
SEPVECES 10 9 custoner. '

lad AS 13 requires entities to.¢xeéreise judgement. taking into-consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying cach step of hie misdel 1o
s the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the vosts direbtly related to
ve-disclosures,

contracts with theircustomersi- The standard also speci
fulfitling a contraet. In addition: the gtandard requires extens

The Compiny adopted Ind AS 115 using the full retrospective method of adoption. The effeet of the transition on the current period has not béen distlosed as the
standard provides an optional practical expedient. The Company did not apply any of the other available optional practical expedients.

(Tliis space has been intentionally lefl blank)
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Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
“(All amounts in Rs.'000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

4. Intangible assets

Software Domain name Trademarks Total

Cost

At April 1,2017 9,540 2,605 , - 12,145
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
At March 31, 2018 9,540 2,605 - 12,145
Additions - 1,400 158 1,558
Disposals - - - -
At March 31,2019 9,540 4,005 158 13,703
Depreciation ,

At April 1,2017 9,540 1,455 - 10,995
Charge for the period - 260 260
Disposals / adjustments* - - -
At March 31,2018 9,540 1,715 - 11,255
Charge for the period - 377 21 398
Disposals ~ - - -
At March 31,2019 9,540 2,092 21 11,653
Net book value

At March 31,2018 - 890 - 890
At March 31,2019 - 1,913 137 2,050
Net book value , , B o At March 31,2019 At March 31,2018
Intangible assets : : ; : 2,050 890

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts in Rs.’000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

5. Other financial assets

As at Asat

March 31, 2019 Marchi31, 2018
Other financial assets
Unsecured; constdered good:unless stated:otherwise
Security deposils 198 98
Advances recoverable in.cash or kind 1,04,638 39,850
Advance to employees 7
Restricted cash held in separate accounts™ 11,162 46,017
Restricted cash held in separate-accounts- Related parties™ {refer note 34) 8,373 -
Receivable from related parties (refer note 34) 21,799 13,363
Total other financial assets 1.46.177 09328
Current 146,077 99,328
Non-current 100 -
Total other financial assets 1.46,177 99.328

* Pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification dated November 24, 2009 the Company acts as an ‘Intermediaries’ and has accordingly received the said amount
in its nodal bank account. From this nodal:bank account, the Company has transferred the respective amount to the merchants. Balance lying in this nodﬂ bank
account as at March 31, 2019 is disclosed as ‘Restricted Cash beld in separate accounts’ in the financial statements.

6. Other asscts
As at Asat

March 31, 2019 March:31,2018
Other assets ;
Advance income-tax 59,486 76,523
Balances with statutory/government authorities 5,82,828 4,75,501
Total other assets 6,42.314 552,024
Current ) .
Non-current 642,314 552,024
Total other assets 6.42,314 5.52.024

7. Investments
As at Asat

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Investments k
Investments at fair value through profit & loss (fully paid)
Unquoted mutual funds
6505 units {March 31, 2018: 93,511 units) of Axis Liquid Fund 13,489 1,80,245
312 units of (March 31, 20185 181,941 uningj Tata Liquid Fund Direct Plan 918 4,98.223
Total investments at fair valuce through profit & loss 14,407 6.78.468
Current 14,407 6,78.468
Non-current - -
Total investments 14.407 6.78:468
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Accelyst Solutions Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts in Rs.'800, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

8. Trade reccivables

As at Agat

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Trade receivables -
Trade receivables 2,224 3,604
Trade receivables fromarelated parties (refer note 34) 688 -
Total trade receivables: 2912 3:604
Breakup for security details:
Unsecured, considered:good 2,912 2,023
Doubtful - 1,581
Total 2912 3.604
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtiul debts)
Doubtiul - {1,381
Total - (1,581)
Total trade receivable 2912 2,023
Current 2,912 2,023
Non-current - -
Total trade receivable 2,912 2,023

No trade or other receivable are dug from: directors or other officers of the company either severally or jomtly with any other person.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing :and are generally on'terms of 30 to 90 days. For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables: (refer note

34).
. Cash and cash equivalents
As at Asat
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- (O current accounts 8,190 1,705
— On current accounts with related parties (refer note 34) 9,680 87,446
Total cash and cash equivalents 17,870 89,151
. Bank Balances other than above
As-at : As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Banl Balances other than above
Depositswith originalanaturity for.more than 3 months but less than 12 months (refer note 34) 52,875 .
Marginmoney deposit® (refer note 34) 1,423 1,339
Total bank balance other than above 54,298 1,339

* Margin money deposit-with a carryingamount of Rs. 1,423 (March 31, 2018 Rs 1,339) 15 given 1o secure corporate-credit card limit from a basks
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’ Accelysfénlutions Private Limited
Notes to the-financial statements
{All amounfs in'Rs:000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

11.

12.

Share capital

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31,2018

Amount Amount
Authorized shares :
1,000,000,000 (March 31, 2018: 1,000,000.000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
679,682,662 (March 31, 2018: 679,682,662 equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up 67.96,827 67.96,827
Total issued, subseribed and fully paid-up share capital 67,96,827 67,96.827
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares

As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018 :
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

At the beginning of the period e ’ 67,96,82 662 67,96,827 3,00,99,838 © 300998
Issued during the period - - 64,9582 824 64:95,829
Outstanding at the end of the period 67,96,82,662 67,96,827 67,96,82,662 67.96,827

(b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of R$.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event-of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled toreceive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential dmounts The
distribution will. be in proportion 10 the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

(¢) Shares held by holding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates
Out of equity shares isstied by the Company, shares held by its holding conipany, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries / associates are as below:

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31,2018

- Amount
Axis Bank Limited, holding company ) 67,96,827 6796827
679,682,662 equity shares-of Rs.10°each fully:paidsup .
(d) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at March 31,2019 As at March 31,2018
Numbher of : Holding Number of Holding
shares percentage shares pereentage
Axis Bank Limited, holding company 67,96,82,662 100% 67,96,82,662 S 100%

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders / mémbers and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Other equity

Amount
Share premium e :
Asat April 1, 2017 34169736
Increase because of issuance of sharé capital ==
As at March-31,2018 . 3469736
Increase because of issuance of share capital - -
As at March 31, 2019 3469736
Share based payments

Amount
As atApril 1, 2017 6,32,415
Less: Shared based compensation of previous year (53,571
Add; Compensation options granted during the § year (refer note 22) 85,595
Less: Payment of amount against contribution to equity (2,73.024)
Less: Amount ywritten off on account of settlement with holding company (refer note 26) {3:91.415)
As at March 31,2018 .
Add: Compensation options granted during the year (refer note 22) -
As at March 31,2019 ¢ -
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Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts in Rs.'000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

13.

14,

Net employee defined benefit liabilities
As at g Asat
March 31, 2019 ’\I’xrch 31,2018
Provision for gratuity 3229 . . 2,591
Provision for compensated absences 1.316 2.472
Total uet employee defined benefit liabilities 4,545 . 5,063
Current 1,926 2871
Non-current . 2,619 2,192
Total net employee defined benefit liabilities 4,545 5,063

In accordance with applicable Indian laws; the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (“the Gratuity Plan™) covering eligible employess. The
Gratuity Plan provides for a lump sum ‘payment to vested employees on retirement (subject to completion of five years of continuous employment), death,
incapacitation orlermination of employment of amounts that are based on salary and tenure of employment Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are. determined
by actuarial valuation on the reporting date:

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the income statement and the funded status and amounts recognised in the
balance sheet for the-plan:

As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Current-service cost 510 , 543
Interest cost on benefit obligation 170 170
Net:benefit expense 680 713
Changes in the present value of the defined. benefit obligation are, as follows :
Amount
Defined benefit obligation at April 1, 2017 2,589
Current service cost 543
Past service cost 279
Interest coston benefit obligation 170
Acquisition (8)
Beriefits paid (1,554)
Actuarial Josses on obligation 572
Défined benefit obligation at March 31; 2018 2,591
Current service cost . 510
Past service cost -
Interest cost on benefit obligation 170
Acquisition -
Benefits paid (499)
Actuarial Josses on obligation 457
Defined benefit obligation at March 31, 2019 3,229

The principal actuarml assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

As at S Asat

March 31, 2019 March:31,2018
Discountrate 6.75% w 7.10%
Salary-escalation rate 12.00% 10.50%
Withdrawal rate 31.07% 2570%
Borrowings
As at - Asat
March 31, 2019 Mareh 31,2018
Borrowings :
Unsecured, loan from related party (refer note 34) 2,94,000 -
Bank Overdraft - related party (refer note 34) 26,000 -
Interest accrued but not due on'borrowings (refer note 34) 7.447 -
Total borrowings 3,27,447 .
Current ) 327,447 -
Non-current - -
Total'borrowings 3,27,447 : -

Unsecured, term loan from related pamics’(refer note 34)
(a) The Company has obtained loan from Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited for the purpose of meeting working capital requirements at an interest
rate of 14% p.a. Quistanding balance as at Mdrch 31, 2019 Rs. 2,94,000 (March 31, 2018:Rs Nil).

{b) The Company has obtained Bank overdraft facility from Axis Bank Limited for the purpose of meeting working capital requirements at an interest rale of'8.3%
p.a. Outstanding balance as at March 31, 2019 Rs. 26,000 (March 31, 2018: Rs Nil)
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Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(AN amounts in R 000, except per share datasind as stated otherwise)

15. Trade sind other pavahles

As at
March 31,2019

Asat
March 31, 2018

Trade puyables

March 31,2019

Trade payables 1.06.568 72,202
Trade payables - related parties: (réfer note 34) 1.16.446 3760
Tutal trade payable 2.23.014 73962
Other payubles
Advange from castomers 2,776 LOS
Accrued salnries and benefitg 1.788 7.061
Stantory liabilities payable 16,466 7889
Payable 1o related partics {refernote 34) 22,066 2.22.048
Advance for wallet FC cash balance 2.800
Others 326
Total other payables 47.222
Total trade and other payables 2.70.236 3.27.217
Current 2,70.236 327217
Non-current - -
Total trade and-pther payables 2.70.236 3.27.217
Terms and conditions of the above finan¢ial Tiabilities:
~ Trade payables are nonsinterest bearing and are ngrmally settfed on 60-day terms
- Otlrer payables are nop-interest-bearing and have an average term of uplo six-months
+ Other financial liabilities
: As at As:at

March 31, 2018

Other financial Habilities

Otherpayables fo-aggregators

Other payables to aggregators - related parties (refer note 34)
Total other financial labilities

Cuprent
Non-current

Total other Tinancial linbilities

(This space has been intendionally left blank)
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Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
{All amounts in Rs,'000, except'per share data and as stated otherwise)

17. Revenue from operations

hd

20.

I
vy

2

td

For the year ended
March 31,2019

For the vearended
Marieh:31,2018

Revenui Trom operations:
Revenue from commission foes
Other operating revenue
Revenue from operations

. Otherincome

1,26,030 138,736
2,946 8545
1.28.976 1.67.281

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Forthé vearended
March 31,2018

Liabilities no longer required written back 9.408 54889
Prafivon sale of fixed asseéws 3.048 (2.732)
Qther non-opérating incoime 2.33] 0
Totil other income 14.807 520137

. Finance income

For the year ended

For the vear ¢ended

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Interest icome on bank deposits 3.288 1,952
Interest on income tax refund 7.605 107
Unwinding of discount on-financial assets at-amertised cost - a8z
Gain oncsale of curréntinvestments {nét) 16,183 10,112
Mark tomarket gain on current invesiiment 56 13.271
Total finance income 27,132 25.824

Service charges

For the year ended

For the vear ended

March 31,2019 March31:2018
Collection charges 1,07.653 135992
Hosting charges 1,98.682 137,541
Total service charges 3.06.335 2.73.533

. Advertisement and publicity expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For theyear ended
Miarch:31,2018

Advertisement and othereXpenses
Business promotion-expenses .
Total adyertisement and publicity éxpenses

. Emplovee benefits expense

4,82.800 245814
368 252
4.83.168 - 246066

For the year ended

For théyearended

March 31,2019 Mareh 31:.2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 81,697 96,538
Contribution to provident and other funds 1.410 1,693
Gratuity expense 680 991
Employee stock option scheme (refer noie 38) - 83.595
Staffwelfare expenses 412 768
Total employce benefit expenses §4.199 1.85.:583

. Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended For theyear ended

March 31,2019 Marehi 31,2018

Depreciation of property. plant and-egiipient (refer note 3) 2.991 6,547
Amorisation of intangible assets {refer nate 4) 398 260
3.389 6.807

Total depreciationand amortisation'expense
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Accelyst Solutions Drivate Limited
Notes to the financial statements
(Al amounts in Rs000, except per share data and:as stated otherwise)

24,

Finance costs

For the year ended

For the yeariended

March 31,2019 March 312018
Interest charges on loans reecived Trom relatéd parties (refer note 34) 8.254 {00737
Bank charges 86 106
Total finance costs 8.340 1.00.863

. Other expenses

For the year ended

For the yearended

March 31,2019 March 312018
Poverand fiiel ' 589 453
Rent 5,949 3702
Payment ta auditor 8§96 1.020
Legal and professionat fees 15,333 5,388
Rates and taxes 1,014 35046
Service tax ¢xpense / reversal under rule 6(3) (réfer B below) 10,100 3,395
Repairs and inaintenance
~Building 866 195
-Plant and machinery 105 73
Communication 1,170 2821
Software expenses 34,429 23547
Impairment of fixed assets - 128
Exchange difference (et} 402 328
Provigion Tor doubtful debts (628) 1023
Loss due to technical configuration issues 7.383 2519
Miscellancous expenscs 364 1748
Total other expenses 77.972 82.686
(A) Payment to Auditor
As auditor;
Auditfee 600 900
Tax andit fee 100 100
Out-of'pocket expenses 196 20
Tatal payment to auditor 896 1.020

(B} GST Expense /reversal is on account of Section. 17(2) of CGST Act, 2017 read with Rule 42 of CGST Rules, 2017, which state that there is obligation fo reverse input

tax credit of common goods / services used forproviding taxable as well as exempted supply.

. Exceptional ltems

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Liability nio longer required writtén back on aceouni of settlement with group o
s K : - 395425
companies (refer note 34)
391425
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Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Nates to the financial statemeilts
(AIL anonnts i RS.'000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

27, Earnings/(Loss) per share (EPS)
Basic EFS. amounts-are-calculated by: dividing the profit for the periad attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average fumber of equity sharessoutsianding

1o
]

(>3
j=3

during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulited by:dividing the profit atirbutable 1o equity bolders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares owtstanding doring the year
plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equily shares.

The following reflects the Toss and share datwused in the basic and dilned EPS computatious:

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For theyearended
March:31.2018

Loss for the year atiributable 1o equity share lolders of the Company {A) {7.92,488) (2.58.873)
Weighted average bt of equity shares.n caleulating basie and diluted EPS (Nosy (B) 67,96.82.662 SES5.69.713
Basic and diluted gain/ (loss). per equity share (Rs.) (A/B) (1L17) {0:50)

. Segment information
The Company's primary business segment is providing recharge platform formobile talktime, pay mobile bills, utility bills. data cards, direct to home {DTH) recharge and netro bills
ele: Urough web and mobile-application based platforms. Accordingly, there are no other reportable business. or peographical segments to be disclosed as per notified Ind AS =108

"Operating Segments™.

Leases
Operating lease commitments

The Company has operating. leases for.its office premises. Total lease payments recoguised in the statement of profit and loss for the year is Rs. 5,940 (March 31 2018 Rs. 3,702,

Thereare no: futuré minjimum lease payments-for the operating lease for the year.

Capital and other commitiments
a. Commitments
Al March 31, 2019, the Coinpany has coinmitments of Rs, Nil (March 31,

b. Contingent:liabilitics

Contingent Habilities asag March 31, 2019°Rs. Nil, (March 31, 2018 - Rs. Nili

2018 - Rs. Nil) net of advances relating 1o service contracts.

31, Amounts due to micro and small enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment (MSMED) Act, 2000 agpregate to Nil based on the infonnation available wuh

a). The principal amount and.the-interest, diie: thereon (March 31, 2018: Nil) rémaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of

b} Theamount of iujerest paid:by the huynr it terms of section 16 of the MSM
payment-made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during eacl accaunting year

the Conpany:

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

each accounting vear

21D Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the

¢} The amount of interest due and payablefor the period of delay in making payment (which havié been paid but beyond the
appoiiited day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act. 2006,

d) Thie amount of interest acerued and remainingt
¢} The amount of furthier interest remaming due

section23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

Expenditure in foreion currency (ongccruail basis)

mpaid at the end of each acéounimg year;
nd payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues-as-above are-actually:paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under.

As at March 31, 2019

As at Margh:31, 2018

Expenditure:

Advertiseiment and other expenses

Legaband professional fees

Hosting charges

Recruitment & Training Expenses

Commuiication

Software expenses

Total

Therewerd no carnings. in foreign currény during current and previous vear,

33, Unhedged foreign cyrrency exposare

Pacticnlars of unhedged foreign currencyiexposureas at the reporting date:

20.163 13,128
98
1,648

44
11,798 2,169
32,005 17.043

Particulars

Unhedged foreigicurrency payable

RS 4,672 (USD 67.541 w Closing rate of T USD = Rs 69.1713)
Agat s

arch 2018 - Nil

No derivative fs takén by the company. 1o hedge these foreign currency pavables
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Accelyst Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
{All amounts in Rs,'000, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

34, Related party disclosures

a) Names of related parties wheré control exists and/or-with whom transactions have taken place during the year
N
Holding Company Axis Bapk Limited (w.e.f October 06, 2017)
Jasper-Infotech Private Limited {upto October 06, 2017)

b) Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during thie year

Key management personne! (KMP} Mr. Ajay.Blutani, Chief Executive Officer (upto October 12, 2018)
Mr. Siddharth Mehta, Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f April 12, 2019)
Mr. Rahul Vermani, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. October 06, 2017)
Ms. Abhilasha Singh, Company Secretary (ipto November 02, 2018)
Ms. Rashmeet Kaur, Company:Secretary w.e f. January 23, 2019)

Fellow subsidiary Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited

Related party tragsactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions.that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant year:

From April'l, 2018 to March 31, 2019 From April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018

Key management
personnel

Key manpgement

Holding Company Fellow subsidiary i
nersonnel

Holding Company Fellow subsidiary

Transactions during the year:

Issue of equity shares
Axis Bank Limited - - - 10,00,000 - -
Jasper Infotech Private Limited - - - 54,95,828 - -

Other aperating revenue
Axis Bank Limited 3,346 - - 3 - -
Tasper Infotéch Private Limited - - - - - -

Interest income
Axig Bank Limited 3,288 - - 46 - -

Reimbursement of expenses to (net)
Jasper Infotech Private Limited - - - (1,587) - -
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited - 4,931 - - 37,594 -

Advertisement and publicity expenses
Axis Bank Limited 1,43,988 - - - - -
Jasper Infotech Private Limited - - - 2,389 - -
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited - 789 - - - -

Finance costs
Axis Bank Limited 1% - - 4 - -
Jasper Infotech Private Limited - - - 82,983 - -
Freecharge Payment Technologles Private Limited - 8,254 - - 17,774 -

Collection charges
Axis Bank Limited 11,899 - - 6,189 - -
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited - 30,890 - - 48,584 -

Employee stock option scheme (refer note 38)
Jasper Infotech Private Limited - - - 85,595 - -

Cross charge of salary cost from (net)
Jasper Infotech Private Limited - - - - - -
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited - 43,323 - - - -

Loan Received
Freecharge Payment Techriologies Private Limited - 2;94,000 - - 5,04,500 -

Louan Repaid
Jasper Infotech Privite Limited - - - 41,43,645 - “
Freecharge Paynient Technologies Private Limited - - - - 7,04,500 -

Sale of fixed assets {refer note 3}
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited - 6,452 - - . -

Liabilities Ne Longer Required Written Back (refer note
26}
Jasper Infofech Privaie Limited - - - 3,91,425 - -

Salary, bonus and contribution to PF* - - 6,555 - - 11,313
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From April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019

From April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018

Holding Company

Fellow subsidiary

Key

personnel

Fellow subsidiary

Key management
ersonnel

Balance as at the year endi

Equity Share Capifal (vefer note 11)
Axis Bank-Limited
Jasper Infotech Private Limited

Share premium onissue of shares (refer note 12)
Axis Bank Limited
Jasper Infotech Private Limited

Short-term borrowings (including interest accrned but
not due) (refer note 14)

Axis Bank Limited

Freecharge Paymént Technologies Private Limited

Trade veceivables (refer note 8)
Axis Bank Limited
Jasper Infotech Private Limited

Other financial assets (refer note 5}
Axis Bank Limited
Freecharge Paymient Technologles Private:Limited

Other payables {refer note 15}

Axis Bank Limited

Jasper Infotech Private Linited

Freecharge Pavment Technologies Private Liniited

Trade payables (refer note 15)
Axis Bank Limited
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited

Other financial liabilities (refer note 16)
Axis Bank Limited
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited

Cash and bank balances (refer note %)
Axis Bank Limited

Bauk Balances other than above {refer note 10)
Axis Bank Limited

Accrued Salaries and benefits*

67,96,827

34,69,736

26,018

688

30,172

1,13,397

5,245

9,680

54,298

3.01,429

395

67,96,827

34,69,736

13,363

30,132

88,786

1,330

191,916

3,751

* Remuneration and other benefits of key:managerial persons does not includes the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an accrued basis for the Company as 2 whele.

Terms and Conditions of transactions with related partics

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent'to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions, Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settfement Svcurs in
cash. There have been no-guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables,
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Aceelyst Solutions Private Limited
Notes to e financial statements
(Al amounts in Rs.000, except per share datiaand as stated otherwise)

35, Fair values
Set out below, 15 a comparison by class of thie varrying amounts and farr value of the Company’s financl instruments, other than thuse with cariying amounis that are
reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrving Value Fair Value
As at As at As at ) As at
Mareh 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019 March-31, 2018

Financial asseis

Tovestments af fair value through Profin & Toss 1407 6.75.468 14.407 6.78.468
Other Ginancial assets 1.46.077 99.328 1.46.077 99.328
Total 146,077 99,328 1.46.077 99,328

Financial Habilities
Othwer financial Habilives 32218 74.897
Total 32218 74,897

74,897
74.897

The mavagement assessed that cash and. cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying
amownty largely due to the short<term maturities of these instruments,

The fuir value of the financial assets and labilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged ina cuivent transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The following methods and assumptions were used (0 estimate the fair values:

(1) Long-term receivables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, individual credit worthiness of the customer wnd the risk
characteristics of the financed project. Based on‘this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of thiese receivables.

36. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to' financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include, liquidity risk and market risk.
The Board provides independent oversight 1o the effectiveness of the risk management process.

The toltowing sections provide: details regarding the Company’s exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives. policies and processes for the
nmnagement of these risks.

There has been no change 1o the Company’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and imeasures the risks

{a) Credit risk

Credil risk is the risk of loss that.may arise-on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty defiult on its obligations. The Company’s exposure to.¢rédit risk
arises primarily {rom trade and other receivables. For other financial assets (including investment securitics, cash and shortstenn deposits). the Company miniinise credit
risk by dealing exclusively with-high credit rating counterparties.

The Company’s objective is fo seek continual révenue growth while minimising losses incurred due 1o increased credit risk exposure. The Company wades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. In-addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Company’s exposure to §ad debts is
nat significant.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentration arise when a number of couriterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activitics in the saie gcographical region, or have econamic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate: the
relative sensitivity of the Company’s perfarniance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avold excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on manttaining 8 diversified. portfolio,
tdentified concenrations of credif risks are conirolled and managed accordingly.

Exposure 1o credit risk

The Company’s maximum exposure 1o credii risk for the components of the statement of financial position as of March 31. 2018 is the carrying amounts 13 disclosed in
note § {Trade receivables),

Financial assets that ave neither past due nor impaired

Trade and other receivables that are neither:past due nor impaired are with creditworthy debtors with good payment record with the Company. Cash and short-term
deposits and investment securities that ave. peither past due nor impaired are placed with reputable financial institutions or companies with high eredit ratings-and no
fustory of defauht.

Financial ussets thet are oither past due or impaired
Information regarding finaheial assets that ave-either past due or impaired is disclosed in note 8 (Trade receivables)

) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Compariy will encounter difficulry in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure to lguidity risk
avises primarily from mismatches of the matiities of financial assets and Labilities. The Company maintains a balance between continuity of funding and fexibility,

The Company assessed the concentration of tisk with respect 1o refinancing its debt and concluded it 1o be low. Access 1o sources of tundimg is sutticiently available,

©) Capital Management

The primary ebjective of the Company’s capiial management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital steucture and healthy capital ratios in order 10, Suppor its
Business mud waxioise shareholder value,

The Company monitors capital using a gearing vatio. whicl is net debt divided by total capital plus et debt. Net debt is calenlated as loans and borrowings less.cash and
ciash equivalents.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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37. Indian \ccounting Standard (Ind AS). issucd but not effective

4

41,
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0.

Ind AN 116 Leases was notified by MCA on Mareh 20, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases. including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual perods beginnimg on

ot after Apnl 12009 Ind AS 110 sets out the prnaiples for the recogmtion. measurement. presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a

smgle on-balance sheet model similar 10 the accounting for tinance leases under Ind AS 17, The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees = leases of low-value

assets (¢.g. parsonal computers) and short-term leases (i.c.. leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease. a lessee will recognise a habihiny 10

make lease payments (1 ¢, the lease hability ) and an asset representing the right to use the under lving asset during the lease term (i.c.. the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required

to separately recognise the mterest expense on the lease habihty and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will be alvo requited to remeasure the Tease labiliny upon the occwence of certain events (¢.g.. a change in the lease term. a change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an mdey or rate used 1o determine those payments) The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the rght-

of-use asset

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 15 substantially unchanged frem today's accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification

prnciple as i Ind AS 17 and disunguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.

[he Company mtends to adopt these standards from 1 Aprl2019. As the Company does not have any material leases. therefore the adoption of this standard 1s not kely to have a

- Employee stock option plan

Certain employees of the Company were given stock options of Jasper Infotech Private Limited (*former holding company’) as per stock option scheme. The scheme is assessed.
managed and administered by the holding company. In accordance with the share purchase agreement entered between 'M's Jasper Infotech Private Limited’ and "M s Axis Bank
Limited'. all existing employees (subject to one employee with specific conditions) of the Company have surrendered vested and unvested options of the holding company.

In accordance with para 43A of Ind AS 102 "Share Based Payments™.in the previous year ended March 31, 2018 the Company had recorded cost amounting to Rs 83.393 on account
of the same. Further. the company had written back liability of Rs 291 415 on account of settlement for the total stock option cost cross charged by the holding company.

- Note on Merger

On Maich
Ltd. (FCPTL). FCPTL 15 also a wholly owned subsidiary of the Axis Bank Ltd. Pursuant to the said scheme upon completion of proposed amalgamation. FCPTL would issue shares
to the sharcholders of ASPL on the basis of share swap ratio as described in the scheme. The appointed date for the amalgamation is October 7. 2017 and the effect of merger will be

2018, the Board of Directors approved a scheme for Amalgamation of Accelyst Solutions Pyt Ltd (ASPL) into and with the Freecharge Payment Technologies Pyt

given in the books from this date. Due to change in registered office address of Freecharge. the said scheme was later modified vide board resolution dated May 8. 2018 1o

incorporate the new registered office address

Subsequently. on May 31. 2018 an application (317 of 2018 ) to approve the Scheme was filed with the National Company Law Tribunal. Mumbai. On August 24. 2018 the

application was admitted by NCLT and reserved the order on the same.

By an order dated August 24, 2018 received on October 8. 2018, Hon'ble NCLT directed the company to hold meeting of equity sharcholder on Oct 24. 2018 after giving 30 davs
advance notice to sharcholders. Since the timeline for advance notice as mentioned in notice could not be adhered to. the company had requested the NCLT to suitably amend the
order. NCLT. Mumbai admitted the said request and to issue an addendum to said order and issued an addendum order on November 16. 2018 directing the Company to hold the
sharcholders mecting on January 13, 2019 and issue notice 10 concerned authorities. The NCLT also granted exemption from holding creditors meeting. Till the date of this report.

the company has notreceived the said addendum.

On 15th January, 2019. the Scheme was approved by shareholders with requisite majority. Subsequently. on January 18, 2019 final petition for approval of scheme was filed in
NCLT. Mumbar and same was listed for hearing on March 29, 2019, On March 29. 2019 the hearing was adjourned to May 31. 2019

Going concern

Ihe Company has mcuired a loss of Rs 792,943 for the year ended March 31,2018 and h umulated losses of Rs 9.970.625 as at that date. However. the Board of Directors of

Axis Bank has approved for fresh capital infusion of Rs. 1.500.000 in its board meeting held on February 19. 2019. The funds. will be used to support the future business operations
of the company . Accordingly. the accompanying financial statements has been prepared on a going concern basis.

Previous year fizuies have been iegrouped  reclassified. where neceesary. 1o conform to current year's classification.
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